
CITY COUNCIL 

MAYOR 
MARY MENDOZA 

VICE MAYOR 
HECTOR A. PACHECO 

COUNCILMEMBER 
SYLVIA BALLIN 

COUNCILMEMBER 
CINDY MONTAÑEZ 

COUNCILMEMBER 
CELESTE T. RODRIGUEZ 

CITY CLERK 
DEPARTMENT 

117 MACNEIL STREET 
SAN FERNANDO 
CALIFORNIA 
91340 

(818) 898-1204

WWW.SFCITY.ORG 

May 18, 2022 

RFP FOR CITYWIDE COPIER UPGRADE PROJECT 
RESPONSE TO QUESTIONS 

ADDENDUM NO. 1 

Question No. 1:  I was wondering if we can have a walkthrough to see where the 
existing copiers are located and the space around them? 

Response No. 1:  If the vendor desires, all photocopiers are located 
throughout the City at City Hall, Public Works City Yard, Las Palmas Park, 
San Fernando Recreation Park, and the Police Department.  

Question No. 2:  I noticed that all the copiers even the small ones require "Finisher, 
Collating, Stapling, Auto Contrast, 2 and 3 Hole Punch, Page numbering", Can you 
verify? 

Response No. 2:  The minimum equipment requirements and features for the 
Small Volume printer has been slightly revised, please see below: 

SMALL VOLUME EQUIPMENT (QTY 2, B&W) 
Locations: Police Department (Records / Dispatch Back Up & Report Writing 
Room) 
Copy Speed 20-45 Copies per Minute
Scanner Speed 30 Copies per Minute 
Document Feeder Reversing/Duplexing Auto Document Feeder 

(RADF)/(DADF) 
Duplex Automatic 
Maximum Size Original 8 ½" x 11" 
Multiple Copies 0-99 minimum
Paper Supply Capacity 500 Sheets (8½” x 11") 
Number of Paper Drawers 3 (Various Paper Sizes) 
Other Required Features Collating 
Copy Volume per Month 5,000-10,000 Copies 

Question No. 3:  "Vendor shall provide at least two extra toner cartridge for each 
machine for staff to keep on hand." - Our MFPs come with full supplies not starter 
supplies.  On color MFPs we have 4 toners.  Are you asking for 8 for each and if we 
provide all color models then 8x14 = 112 toners. 

http://www.sfcity.org/
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Response No. 3:  The City is requesting ten (10) color printers and four (4) 
black/white only printers. At a minimum, each printer should have one extra toner 
on hand (black and color). 
 
Question No. 4:  Can you provide the current Canon models? 
 
Response No. 4:  The current Canon models can be found below: 
 

• IRADV400IF • IRADV4245 
• IRADVC250 • IRADVC5535I 
• IRADVC7570I • IRADVC250 
• IRADV400IF  

 
Question No. 5:  Can you provide a Copy of the Current contract and costs? 
 
Response No. 5:  Please see Exhibit “A” for the current costs 
 
Question No. 6:  Can we provide an alternate model for your low volume units? 
 
Response No. 6:  Yes, if necessary, please provide an alternate model. 
 
Question No. 7:  Will it be our responsibility to remove and ship back the old 
equipment, or is this the responsibility of the current supplier? 
 
Response No. 7:  The City will confirm with the current supplier. Please propose a 
line item with the cost.  
 
Question No. 8:  For the medium and/or small volume units, will you accept inner 
staple finishers or do you prefer console finishers at the side of the devices? 
 
Response No. 8: Inner staple finisher is acceptable for medium volume unit. Please 
refer to Response No. 2 for small volume units. 
 
Question No. 9:  Page 5 under A.1. Unit Quantities.  This section states that “the 
City reserves the right to increase or decrease the number of units depending on 
the City’s needs/requirements.”  Can you expand on this? Can you provide 
anticipated (or historical) number of units over the term that would increase or 
decrease? 
 
Response No. 9:  The City is requesting upgrades to fourteen (14) printers 
throughout the City. The City cannot determine an increase or decrease in the 
future at this time. 
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Question No. 10:  Page 8-9, Method of Selection and Notices.  Are the bulleted 
selection criteria equally weighted? If not, can you provide the weighting? 
 
Response No. 10:  Bullet points are listed by highest to lowest priority: 
 

1. Cost Effectiveness 
2. Potential to benefit the City 
3. Responsiveness to City’s issues 
4. Completeness and Comprehensiveness 
5. Experience of the firm providing similar services to other municipalities 
6. Quality of proposed staff 

 
Question No. 11:  Can I request a copy of the existing lease agreements and 
monthly B&W and Color service volumes for the Sharp equipment currently 
installed at the City of San Fernando. 
 
Response No. 11:  Please refer to Exhibit “A”. 
 
Question No. 12:  Is the City of San Fernando willing to accept a 5 year (60 Mo.) 
lease as an exception to the RFP in order to reduce the payment amount per 
month? 
 
Response No. 12:  Yes. 
 
Question No. 13:  On Page 6 of the RFP - A. Required Equipment, 5. Capabilities, i) 
Equipped with Optical Character Recognition (OCR) software, which allows users 
to convert scanned documents into editable file formats including Microsoft Word 
and Excel. Does the City of San Fernando require the ability to scan to Excel?  Or 
will scan to Office Open XML (PowerPoint, Word) be sufficient? 
 
Response No. 13:  Office Open XML will suffice. 
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CONTRACT INVOICE 

26037 Huntington Lane Santa Clarita, CA 91355 
P: 818.781.2200 F: 818.781.8314 

Bill To: City of San Fernando City Hall 
Ismael Aguila 
117 Macneil St. 
San Fernando, CA 91340 
USA 

Account No I Payment Terms 

 I Net 10 Days 

Contract Number I Contact 

 I Julian Venegas (818) 898-1290 

Invoice Number: 

Invoice Date: 

Account Number: 

Balance Due: 

Customer: City of San Fernando City Hall 
117 Macneil St. 
San Fernando, CA 91340 

Due Date I Invoice Total I 
3/3/2022 I $ 1,247.07 I 

Invoice Remarks 

I Contract Amount P.O. Number Start Date 

I $1,206.94 2/19/2021 

Contract Remarks 

502114 

2/21/2022 

 

$1,247.07 

Balance Due 

$ 1,247.07 

I Exp. Date 

I 2/18/2022 

Full M/A includes: labor oarts toner and waste tanks.Allocated toner for this contract is based on the manufacturer's vield. Anv excess toner will be billable. 

Summary: 
Contract base rate charge for this billing period 

Contract overage charge for the 1/ 19/2022 to 2/18/2022 overage period 

**See overage details below 

Detail: 
Equipment included under this contract 

SHARP/MX-4111N 
Number Serial Number Base Adj. 

EQ20796  $0.00 

$0.00 

$1,206.94 ** 

$1,206.94 

Location 

City of San Fernando 505 S. Huntington St. 
San Fernando, CA 91340 

_M_e_te_r_T ..... y~p_e __ M_e_t_er_G_r_o_up~ __ B_eg.._i_n_M_e_te_r __ En_d_M_et_e_r __ C_re_d_i~ ____ To_ra_l ___ C_ov_e_r_ed ___ B_il_la_bl_e ____ Ra_t...;.e ___ o_v_e_ra_...ge

B\W 8/W Meters 334,192 334,245 53 0** 53 0.016900 $0.90**

Color Color Meters 110,259 110,458 199 0** 199 0.087900 $17.49**

** Allocated amount from meter group $18.39 

Number Location 
City of San Fernando - Recreation Services 208 Park Ave. 

Serial Number Base Adj. 

EQ20797  $0.00 
San Fernando, CA 91340 

---M.....;e;..;;.te.;_r_T ..... y._p.;;..e __ M_e'-te.;;..r_G.;_r...;.o"""up'--__ B~eg.._i_n_M_e_te_r __ En_d_M_et_e_r __ C_re_d_i~ ____ To.;_t;.;;.a'-1 ___ C_ov_e_r..;..ed;___....;;B;.;.;il;.;;;la.;;:.bl;.;;;e ___ ;,,;,Ra:;.:t;.;;;.e ___ O::...vc.:eccra=ge 

B\W 8/W Meters 372,386 * 373,809 * 1,423 0** 1,423 0.016900 $24.05** 

Color Color Meters 123,394 * 124,210 * 816 0** 816 0.087900 $71.73** 

* Estimated meter reading $95.78 

Number Serial Number Base Adj. Location ! 

EQ20798  $0.00 City of San Fernando City Hall 117 Macneil St. 
San Fernando, CA 91340 

---M""'ec.;;.t e;;.;.r_T ..... y .. p.;;..e_"""M""'e;;.;;t.;;..er_G~r..:.o.;c.up'--_..c.B.;;..eg .... i""-n ..;..M.;..;;e"""te::...r _ _;;;;,En_d'---M...;.et""'e_r _.....;C"'"re.;..;d ___ i~;.;;._ __ -'-To;;..;t;.;;;.a'-1 __ ___;;C..c.ov.;...e::...r.c..ed'--_....;;B""il;.;;;la.:c.bl;.;;;e ___ ;,,;,Ra:;.:t;.;;;.e __ ..;O::...vc.:eccra=ge 

B\W 8/W Meters 302,957 304,733 1,776 0* * 1,776 0.016900 $30.01 ** 

Color Color Meters 795,666 799,150 3,484 0** 3,484 

** Allocated amount from meter group 

0.087900 $306.24** 

$336.25 
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RFP for Citywide Copier Upgrade Project Addendum No. 1 
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26037 Huntington Lane Santa Clarita, CA 91355 
P: 818.781.2200 F: 818.781.8314 

Bill To: City of San Fernando City Hall 
Ismael Aguila 
117 Macneil St. 
San Fernando, CA 91340 
USA 

Account No Payment Terms 

 Net 10 Days 

Number Serial Number 
EQ20799  

Meter T:i'.ee Meter Groue Begin Meter End Meter 

B\W B/W Meters 262,205 264,144 

Color Color Meters 112,780 117,336 

** Allocated amount from meter group 

SHARP/MX-M283N 
Number Serial Number 
EQ20815  

Meter T:i'.ee Meter Groue Begin Meter End Meter 

B\W B/W Meters 246,618 248,351 

** Allocated amount from meter group 

SHARP/SHARP MX-M753N 
Number Serial Number 

EQ20794  

Meter T:i'.ee Meter Groue Begin Meter End Meter 

B\W B/W Meters 1,110,758 1,128,154 

** Allocated amount from meter group 

I 
I 

Invoice Number: 

Invoice Date: 

· Account Number: 

Balance Due: 

Customer: City of San Fernando City Hall 
117 Macneil St. 
San Fernando, CA 91340 

Due Date I Invoice Total I 
3/3/2022 I $1,247.07 I 

Invoice Remarks 

Base Adj. Location 

502114 

2/21/2022 

 

$1,247.07 

Balance Due 

$ 1,247.07 

$0.00 City of San Fernando - Las Palmas Park 505 S. Huntington 
St. 
San Fernando, CA 91340 

Credits Total Covered Billable Rate Overage 

1,939 0** 1,939 0.016900 $32,77** 

4,556 0** 4,556 0.087900 $400.47** 

$433.24 

Base Adj. Location 

$0.00 City of San Fernando Public Works City Yard 120 Macneil 
Street 
San Fernando, CA 91340 

Credits Total Covered Billable Rate Overage 

1,733 0** 1,733 0.016900 $29.29** 

$29.29 

Base Adj. Location 

$0.00 City of San Fernando City Hall 117 Macneil St. 
San Fernando, CA 91340 

Credits Total Covered Billable Rate Overage 

17,396 0** 17,396 0.016900 $293.99** 

$293.99 
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26037 Huntington Lane Santa Clarita, CA 91355 
P: 818.781.2200 F: 818.781.8314 

Bill To: City of San Fernando City Hall 
Ismael Aguila 
117 Macneil St. 
San Fernando, CA 91340 
USA 

Account No Payment Terms 

 Net 10 Days 

CONTRACT INVOICE 

Invoice Number: 

== - Invoice Date: ---- Account Number: ---- Balance Due: 

-== 
Customer: City of San Fernando City Hall 

117 Macneil St. 
San Fernando, CA 91340 

Due Date I Invoice Total I 
3/3/2022 I $1,247.07 I 

502114 

2/21/2022 

 

$1,247.07 

Balance Due 

$ 1,247.07 
Invoice Remarks 

Overage Details 
Meter Group 

B/W Meters 

Meter Type 

B\W 

B\W 

B\W 

B\W 

B\W 

B\W 

Meter Group 

Color Meters 

Meter Type 

Color 

Color 

Color 

Color 

Remit Payment To. 
Image 2000, Inc. 
26037 Huntington Lane 
Santa Clarita, CA 91355 

Total Copies Covered Copies 

24,320 0 

Equip. Number Serial Number 

EQ20794 

EQ20796 

EQ20797 

EQ20798 

EQ20799 

EQ20815 

Total Copies Covered Copies 

9,055 0 

Equip. Number Serial Number 

EQ20796 

EQ20797 

EQ20798 

EQ20799 

0 

0 

Billable 

24,320 

Begin 

1,110,758 

334,192 

372,386 

302,957 

262,205 

246,618 

Billable 

9,055 

Begin 

110,259 

123,394 

795,666 

112,780 

Rate 

$0.016900 

Base Amount: 

End 

1,128,154 

334,245 

373,809 

304,733 

264,144 

248,351 

Rate 

$0.087900 

Base Amount: 

End 

110,458 

124,210 

799,150 

117,336 

Total 

$411.01 

$0.00 

$411.01 

Copies 

17,396 

53 

1,423 

1,776 

1,939 

1,733 

Total 

$795.93 

$0.00 

$795.93 

Copies 

199 

816 

3,484 

4,556 

Total Grouped Overage Charges: $1,206.94 

Total Grouped Base Charges: $0.00 

Tot~ Meter Group Charges: $1,206.94 

I nvoice SubTotal $1,206.94 

Tax: $40.13 ------
Invoice Total $1,247.07 

Balance Due: $1,247.07 

26037 Huntington Lane Santa Clarita, CA 91355 818.781.2200 
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